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UALGL G301
AGHBERK VILLAGE

Unpbpp qymnp hymuhu-wpldnunphg (o’ £. Loppngju-
Gh, 2019 p. Ywpnh 13)

Aghberk Village from the north-west (photo by R. Korto-
shian, 13 March 2019)

StnunpmpyniG. qubynid £ StnuppmGh-
ph dwpgh UpnwGhoh phpuyngnt hynuuhunud®
UntiqniGh (nGw)npwjh hwpwjuplbyw
ynnunud” UlwGw 18hg minhn qony dnwn 3 Yu
htinnt” dApwjumnply b Snpdw qynintiph hwplw-
Gnipjudp (Onyh dwytipniyyphg pwpdp & 2120-
2190 v):

UaJwln. yuundwlwl winilp dnnwg-
yty L: O nuph wnwohl YtutinhG wjuwntin
(Guunuwlbtgnipjwl wlgwo pnyynpltipp gjnup
Ungty GG dtpdwlw Grwlwynp unnpbpypju
wnpjmphG hptiGg huy Yynnihg wpguwd Unpni-
[wfu wajwyip, npp pnipptipkiGhg pupguwlw-
pwn Gwlwlind L uyhnwly wnpnip: dYwj-
gyt L Gwb Upnyuwn L Ununywn wijwbw-
autipny: 1991 p. yuwpunlGwytiu Yypuwayw iyt
L Unptipp':

MuntinipymG. qymnph dwuhl qpuynp hhG
hhywnwynipyniGGtp hwjmbh st6: Fw wwy-
dwlwynpjwo Yuwnpnn b 1hGhp Gpulng, np
fuqytiy £ juwp pGuluquyph dnnwgywo pmb
hwjuyuG U ytpohG 150 mwphGtph plpwg-
pnid ppowluwnynn wlwl dhol: {wukGuw)l
ntiyu, qpuynp wnpympltpmd Uppnyqun wi-
Juip wnwohl wlqud hhywwnwyynmd L dO
nunph wnwohl Ytutinhg, uvwywj)l qyninnid
wwhwywijwo Gmpwlwl vpwynyph hniywp-
dwlGtph WGwgnpnGhpp Yyuymd GG pGulw-
Juwyph qnynipyniGG6 wnGyuqb nip vheGunwnphg:

1 Qwjuwunwbh {wlpuybtnnpjul pGuwiuduiptph pw-
nwpw(, Gplwd, 2008, Ly 14:

U.l]p[lp g wplbiphg (mu.” . ppnzjwﬁh, 2019 p.
dwyhuh 15)

Aghberk Village from the east (photo by R. Kortoshian,
15 May 2019)

Location. Aghberk is situated north of Ar-
tanish Peninsula in Gegharkunik Region of the
Republic of Armenia, south-east of the Areguni
mountain range, within about 3 km of Lake Se-
van in a straight line, near the villages of Drakh-
tik and Shorzha, at an altitude of 2,120 to 2,190
metres.

Name. The historical name of the village has
fallen into oblivion. The nomads who took up a
sedentary mode of life here in the first half of the
19th century called the village Aghbulakh, the
name that they had already given to a well-
known nearby spring: aghbulakh means a white
spring as translated from Turkish. The village
has also been mentioned as Albulagh and Aghpu-
lagh. In 1991 it was officially renamed Agh-
berk.!

History. The old available records do not con-
tain any reference to the village: this can perhaps
be explained by the fact that the name that has
been used in recent 150 years does not bear any
reference to its original Armenian name. The ear-
liest written mention of the village, by the name of
Albulagh, dates back to the first half of the 19th
century, while the remnants of the monuments of
material culture preserved here prove that it has
existed since at least the late Middle Ages.

1 Dictionary of Armenian Residences (Yerevan, 2008), p. 14.



UlwGw (hdG Unptipphg, UptqniGh GeGwynpwih YhGmpnGwliuwl hwnjwop hwpwd-wnpldnunphg, UnnwGhyh pbpw-
UnqhG hymuhu-wpldmwmphg (mu.” 0. Loppnyjwmbh, 2019 p.)

Lake Sevan from Aghberk; the central part of the Areguni chain from the south-west, and Artanish Peninsula from the
north-west (photos by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

Lliwysmpymb. pun ywhywijwo hwjjw-
Jui gbptquubuyubG hnpwpdwGGtph” Un-
ptnpp gyninp qnun hwyupGuy £ Gt dhasl dk-
dC nn. L, wiklw)i hwjwlwlwlnipjudp,
pGhyGtphg nuumwnpyyby t 1604 p. Swh Upwuh
pelwqunph L dC nuph (kqghGtph wpyw-
JwlpGtph httmlwGpny:

tuwquyny® 1829-1830 pp., qyunmid
hwunwwuynid GG UwpnijuwGhg (QGwhnup-
nuy) mbnuihnfujwd dh pwlh i pwpw-
pwiw pnipptp® (YtpohGGhphu wwwnlwtng
gqlipiquuwlngmd wnjw wpdwGwaqhp puptph
hGwqnyyGp Yypmd t hhoph 1314 (1896-1897)
pJuluwp):

{wjywGh tp, np gymnuplwl paipphpp Lu
htin sthG WGnmd hptiGg gbinhG hwwnny wjw-

2 {wjwuwmwlh b hwpwlhg ypowGGtph wbnubnGaaph
punwpwl (wjunthtin’® {LTSL, hwiwywmwuuw
hwuwnpny), h. 1, juqu.’ {winpju ©-., Utjhp-Lwlugjwi
U., Pupubinqué <., Gplwd, 1986, L9 166: Unjw wtint-
YmpymGGph hwiwdw)i Uwpnijuwl qninp hwjw-
pwihytiy £ JC nupmd (kqqhGiph wppwjwlph hb-
wlwlpny, wyw O nuph uyqpltphG Gplwbh fjuwGh
owlptipny pGwytgyty pwpwpwiw  pnipptpny
(hy.wikipedia.org/wiki/UwnmfuwG_(Q-tnwuppmGhph dwpg):
dtipohGltpu qyninhg htinwgty GG 1828 p., tipp wjuntin
EG ulunud ytpuwplGulgt) Pwjugqtin qujunhg qunpud
hwjtpp (KLTSA, h. 4, GpluwG, 1998, te 546):

Population. Judging from the preserved Ar-
menian tombstones, Aghberk was entirely popu-
lated by Armenians until the 17th to 18th cen-
turies, most probably, being emptied of its natives
in the aftermath of the deportation organised by
Shah Abbas in 1604, and the Lezghin invasions
of the 18th century.

Later, in 1829 to 1830, several families of
Tarakama Turks? from Sarukhan (Dalighardash)
took up residence in the village: the oldest ins-
cribed tombstone of their cemetery dates from
1314 (1896 to 1897) of Hijrah.

These Turks were not at all different from
their fellow tribesmen for whom banditry was a
common lifestyle: they kept destroying and

2 Dictionary of Toponymy of Armenia and Adjacent Territo-
ries, vol. 1, compiled by T. Hakobian, S. Melik-Bakhsh-
ian, H. Barseghian (Yerevan, 1986), p. 166. According to
the available records, Sarukhan Village was emptied of its
Armenian inhabitants in consequence of the Lezghin inva-
sions of the 18th century. In the early 19th century, it was
re-populated by Tarakama Turks thanks to the efforts of
the khan of Yerevan (hy.wikipedia.org/wiki/Uwpntjuw-
(QtinuppniGhph_dwnpq). These Turks left the village in
1828, when Armenian refugees from Bayazet District star-
ted taking up residence here (Dictionary of Toponymy,
vol. 4 (Yerevan, 1998), p. 546).



Unpbipp qyninp hynwhu-wnlbiphg (ow.’ 2. Lnppn)jwuGh, 2019 p.)

Aghberk Village from the north-east (photo by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

quywpwpn wpwppltpny. wybtpnd, pujw-
(nud, Ynnnuyunnud b uyqulnud £hG 2powGh fuw-
nun pGwlysnipjwlbn, hGywtiu Gl ngGywglnd
(pwlg unbtnowd wnpdtipltpp: “Ftntu 1862-
1863 pp. 2powlnui niuniGuuhpnipyniGGtnp
Jquunwpwo U. Udpwunjwlgl wyn wiklh dw-
uhl Gynud L. «nnpitih pnipptipp wikl ntn
YpoGwuinimphilp gnjg GG wnmwih, thnfuwlwly
wuiwgkng’ np hptlp wnopwpwl smGhG, w)-
fjuwunmmyd GG pphunnlthg wnopwpwGGtnG
9ligh] whhtnwgGby...»*:

bpwyhdwlp GnyGa Ep Gwlb b nuph
ulqphl: UlwGh wjwqulnd pnipptph hwdw-
fuwyh nupéwd wjuquujhlG hwpdwynwd-
GtphG Ytp mwnt Gupumwyny 1917 p. wdnw-
(p nnuwlwl pwlwlp npnpuwyh gqnponnnip-
jmGatp L dtnGwpyni: Ujn dwuhlG «Uwl»
plippnud Jupnnud Glp. «..wju wmwph Gpwig
pwjwlnuiGtpnl nt Ynnnununp hpwlg qu-
quplwlitwmhlG hwuwG...: Qopph vdh dwup
ninupyytg UlwGh onJuyh wplbjbwl whnd
nGywo dojowl gunmy, LwntidnhGo, nph vh
pninl nniu wnulnuinp pGwyhsGiphG hwplwG
qghiniph  pnipptippn wlihwlquunuglni thd,
potiny Gpwlg nsfuwnpGipG nt wGwunGGtpn:

3 Udpwwnbtwbg U, Stnughp GtnuppnilGhph Onjuqupn
quwnh, Eouhwohd, 1895, te 630:

plundering the villages of the neighbourhood,
killing the peaceful inhabitants and ruining what
they had built. M. Smbatiants, who carried out
studies in this region between 1862 and 1863,
wrote the following in this respect: “These des-
picable Turks keep showing their religious big-
otry everywhere: instead of feeling ashamed for
not having even a prayer-house, they are trying
to destroy the places of Christian worship.”
The situation was the same in the early 20th
century. In order to put an end to the frequent
Turkish raids in the Sevan basin, the Russian
army took some actions in the summer of 1917.
The newspaper Mshak wrote the following about
this: “The plunder and robbery they [the Turks]
have committed this year has been unprecedent-
ed.... Part of the troops were sent to the Molokan
village of Nadezhdino, on the eastern shore of
Lake Sevan: the local Russian sectarians, form-
ing a very small number, were being harassed by
the Turks of the neighbouring villages, their
sheep and cattle being frequently captured. The
Turks of Aghbulagh and Tokhluja met these
troops with an armed resistance, during which

3 M. Smbatiants, “Topography of Tzovazard District of Ge-
gharkunik,” Echmiatzin, 1895, p. 630.

3
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Unptnp qnunp hymuhuwplbju teGuququphg (nw.” £. Loppngjwh, 2019 p.)
Aghberk Village from the north-eastern mountain peak (photo by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

9Qonphl qtlpny nhuiwnpty thG Unpniywnh L
[Ootuimgwjh pmpptipp, nph dhenghlG wnpnt-
(unghp uywGjuwolhp mGhgwd, nump tyqk-
Umghwyh thengmy dbppwlwpiny vh pwth
pnipp GplbhGup’ puiwpuwpytighl nntu ghinu-
ghp...»*

Uty wy nbiwp £y qpubgyty £ 1918 p. hniG-
Jupp 27-hG, nph YwuhG jpunyuyul hwnnp-
nuwqpnipjniln Gynud L. «Up-Pnyqun ghinh
pmpp pGwyhsGbpp jupdwldtghl dojolwi-
Gtph ‘buntdnhGo qhinh Yypw: Goplipnpn onl &
wuwynwwiymud tlp fupwdwwmGbpnud, pnjp p
wnwny dtq Ynnnuut;: Uyguwljwo k& 1 dojo-
Juwd, tpynuup wljwjm Ynptp bG...»°:

Cnipg 150 wmwph gyuunmui pGuympniG
hwunmwunwo pwpwpwiw pnipptipp (1936 p.-
hg" wnppligwlgh) funphppwjhG Uhnipjud
ytinghG wmwppGtphl htnwlnmd GG 1988 p.
GnjtdptinhG hptiGg wGtpp thnfuwlwyting
{jnuhuwjhG Upgwiuh (wydd UnpptigwGniy)
Cwdfunph ppowlh UwpwniGh qyninhg pnGw-
qunpywo hwjtiph httn: UYtih o 1991 p. tw-
JhuhG, wjunbn GG hwunmwwmynmd Gwl mbnu-
hwljwo ghimw)tlGghGtpp, huy 1992 p. ognu-
wmnuhl’ wpoywptiighGtpp, pGyybtu Gl pwp-
4 Npunpn, UGwpluhw6 pwpmGuyynud £, «Uowly, 1917,

No 194, 14 utiupntaiptiph, k9 3:
5 «Upwlp», 1918, Ne 21, 30 jniGuinh, ke 2:

4

the people of Aghbulagh suffered some losses.
Several outstanding Turks were arrested..., this
giving a feeling of satisfaction to the Russian
peasants.”

Another such incident took place on 27
January 1918, a press publication stating the fol-
lowing about it: “The Molokan-inhabited village
of Nadezhdino has been attacked by the Turkish
inhabitants of Al-Bulagh Village. We have been
defending ourselves in trenches for already se-
ven days not to allow them to rob us. A Molokan
has been killed, and two others have gone miss-
ing.”’

The Tarakama Turks (called Azerbaijanians
since 1936) who had been living in Aghberk for
over 150 years left the village just on the eve of
the collapse of the Soviet Union, in November
1988, exchanging houses with the Armenian ref-
ugees who had been deported from Martuni
Village of Shamkhor District, Northern Artsakh
(now within Azerbaijan). Later, in May 1991, the
village also provided home for the Armenians
deported from Getashen Village of Northern
Artsakh. In August 1992 the Armenians of
4 Vorsord, “Anarchy Continues,” Mshak, no. 194, 14 Sep-

tember 1917, p. 3.
5 Mshak, no. 21, 30 January 1918, p. 2.



ytgh, qudwytgh L nuyptuwbgh th pwih
wntl huybtip®:

Gjninh pGwlyynpjul pyuwpwluwlyl wp-
wnwgninn yhdwwgpuywl wnyjwlGeph hw-
dwnpmip Gepuyuglind £ hbnbyw quunyb-
np.

Artzvashen took up residence here together with
several Armenian families from Baku, Gandzak
and Dashkesan.®

Below follow the available statistical data
regarding the number of the population of
Aghberk:

wwnpbtphy-year hwy-Armenian pyownp-Turkic pnunitGp-total
wmniG-houses )Gs.-inhabitants  wmniG-houses )Gjs.-inhabitants wmniG-houses )(Gs.-inhabitants

18317 136 136
1840-wlwa® 20 20

1873° 422 422
18860 575 575
1908!! 940 940
191412 1134 1134
1916 1113 1113
1919 1329 1329
192213 1053 1053
19266 1229 1229
1931" 1392 1392
193918 1504 1504
1959%° 1141 1141
1970%° 1563 1563
198971 688
200122 298 298
20047 209 209
2008%4 249 249
2019% 60 60 261

6 StntympjniGGtpp dtq £ thnfuwlghy qyninh wwwndne-
pjw ntunighy Mtwnpnu UYypunnudjwGp:

7 Hacenennble myHkTel u HaceieHue Apm. CCP 3a
1831-1959 ronpl, craTucTUUECKUii COOPHUK, COCT.
A. Manugensn, I'. Maprupocsn, Epesan, 1962, c. 87
(wjunthtin® HaceneHHble TIYHKTBI M HAaceJeHME...,
hwdwywunwuuwG tobpny):

8 CwhjuwpniGbwlg Cwhphwpginy dshwpwlh uppny Eouh-
wolh, h. 2, Eouhwoh, 1842, ke 257: @mppwplwly k hhy-
ymd Gul 1863 p. (UdpwmntuuGg U, G2y. w)fu., Lo 631,
636):

9 HacesneHHbIe MyHKTHI U HaceJeHue..., c. 87.

10 ‘Lnyy G wnbnnui:

11 °bnyG mbinnid:

12 'Lyl wbinnui:

13 ‘Lny G wnbnnui:

14 by G nbnnui:

15°bnyyl wbinnud:

16 2SR, h. 1, ko 166:

17 HacesieHHbIC MyHKTBI U HaceJeHHUe..., c. 87.

18-19 LY. wptu., k9 39:

20 42CSA, h. 1, by 166:

21-23 Quwywumwlh {wlpwybnnmpjul pGuluwywjptph
pwnwpu, Lo 14:

24 https://www.armstat.am/file/article/marz_08 36.pdf

25 Cun wntinmd Juwwpyjwo hwpgnuiGtph:

6 This information was provided by the history teacher of
Aghberk, Petros Mkrtumian.

7 The Residences and Population of the Armenian SSR
between 1831 and 1959: collection of statistical data com-
piled by A. Manvelian, G. Martirossian (Yerevan, 1962),
p. 87.

8 Shahkhatuniants Shahriartsy, a Monk of Holy Echmiatzin,
vol. 2 (Echmiatzin, 1842), p. 257. The village was also men-
tioned as inhabited by Turks in 1863 (Smbatiants, “Topog-
raphy of Tzovazard District of Gegharkunik,” pp. 631, 636).

9 The Residences and Population of the Armenian SSR, p. 87.

10 Ibid.

11 Ibid.

12 Ibid.

13 Ibid.

14 Ibid.

15 Ibid.

16 Dictionary of Toponymy of Armenia and Adjacent Terri-
tories, vol. 1, p. 166.

17 The Residences and Population of the Armenian SSR, p. 87.

18-19 Ibid., p. 39.

20 Dictionary of Toponymy of Armenia and Adjacent Territo-
ries, vol. 1, p. 166.

21-23 Dictionary of Armenian Residences, p. 14.

24 https://www.armstat.am/file/article/marz_08_36.pdf

25 According to the inquiries made in the village.



a-3NMP MUSUTLHUL L NrCULULLELR
THE HISTORICAL MONUMENTS OF THE VILLAGE

ymip' U. dwynpjwéh, 2019 p.)

Unpbinp qymnh qifuwynp hwmuughoG pum Google Earth (2017 p.) wippwGyuiuyhG muwyuph (qpuudhlujub dyw-

The general layout of Aghberk Village based on a Google Earth photograph of 2017 (graphical work by A. Hakobian, 2019)

Uwnpl Gipyuywglnd Gap Unptipp qyninh
wwwnwlwl hnywpdwGibpp?.

LwjluljuG gqliptiqiwlng. qyninh hymuhu-
wplbijuwl bgphG (YaGupnGhg wplbp) wwh-
wwlyni GG hpuGwhwwnwy nyGyugyuwd hwy-
Juywl qtphquwbngh (N 40° 31.878"; E 045°
16.759°, 0.4. 2178 1) Yytipghl dwGwgnpnGtpp’ dk-
dC nuptiphG pGnpny wid)wly, wliwpdwlwghp
fungnp vwjwnmwwwGGbpn: G- ynqupGwlyitpp
hwjnGtghG, np 1988 p. nnnipjuwdp Gyywo hwwn-
Jwop pnipptnp gnpowonud Eha npujtiu gulpw-
nwpuwop (twuwunwwwbilibpp Ynunwyt; GG
tgntphG, huy fuwgpwptpp” hwiwmwpwo jni-
nwgnt] L oquwugnpoty npuytiu phGwGynip):

26 X< wuwuninipjwl L Yywynyph whywpd hnyywpdwiib-
nh guwlynd hwyguwnywo shl:

S

Below we are presenting the historical mon-
uments of Aghberk Village®®:

Armenian Cemetery. The last remnants of
the destroyed Armenian cemetery (N 40°
31.878"; E 045° 16.759", 2,178 metres above sea
level) of Aghberk, rough, uninscribed slabstones
of the 17th to 18th centuries, are preserved at the
north-eastern edge of the village, east of its cen-
tre. As the locals told us, in 1988 the Turks used
this area for agricultural purposes: the slabstones
had been moved to the edges of the cemetery,
while the cross-stones were appropriated as buil-
ding material.

26 These monuments are not on the List of the Immovable Mo-
numents of History and Culture of the Republic of Armenia.
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Uytnjwo hwjjuljuG qbntquimGngp hwpunjhg (nw.’ £ Ghptiquiwbngh tqntphG ynonwlpjuwd uwpunuwuuGitn
Lnppnyjuibh, 2019 p.) (intu.” . Lnppnpjwih, 2019 p.)

The destroyed Armenian cemetery from the south (photo
by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

Slabstones moved to the edges of the cemetery (photo by
R. Kortoshian, 2019)

dtpohlG mwphGpphG jumwpgwo mwpw-
plnyp wpfuwwmwlpltph dwiwlwl wnbnu-
plGwly hwjytpp hwymGwptipty GG wmGtph L gn-
dtph npitpnid oquiugnpoywo 5 (2-p° wpdw-
(Gwqhp) dhwynp fuwspwp Jud fuwspwph pb-
Unp: Cun ndwlwl wnwGdGwhwwnynipnil-
Gtph" poinpG L pywgqpynud 66 dE-dC nupb-

In recent years, in the course of construction
activities, a wholly-preserved cross-stone and
the fragments of 4 others have been found in the
walls of the local houses and cattle-sheds (the
cross-stone and one of the fragments are
inscribed). Judging from their stylistic peculiari-
ties, all of them trace back to the 17th to 18th
centuries.
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Towsp pintiynig htnn wGtiphg dhih npihG npuytu wilynGupwn gnpowdfwd fuwspwn (nw. L gpg.’ . Loppnyjwubh, 2009
L 2019 pp.), nnG wydd mbuwGhih sk (wunp ujwnyt t):

A cross-stone that was used as a cornerstone in the wall of a local house after the cross had been scraped away (photos
and tracing by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

7



Chlptiph npitiphg huynGwpbpywd fuwspwntph piynpGtp (ow.” £. Loppnjwbh, 2019 p.)
Cross-stone fragments found in the walls of some buildings (photos by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

Udpnnowywl vhwy fuwspwnph L ptynph Below follow the inscriptions engraved on
wnpdwlwgnmpymGGatpG Ga. the aforementioned cross-stone and fragment:

v Umypp fu(usu) [h](nl)nipli(wi) hnjgniG 1 This Holy Cross is for the salvation of Pi-
OhtyhaG: lek’s soul.

e ... qluuy ... [ ... 2 ... this cross...

1988 p. httiin hwjyuwlwb Gnp giphquwlng After 1988 a new Armenian cemetery was
E gnjught] qyninhg vnn 150 ¢ wplainunp: formed about 150 metres west of the village.

Npubu 2hGwbmp qnpomdywd fuwspwnh phiynp (mu. L qpg.’ 2. Loppnyjwbh, 2009 p.), npp 2010 p.-hg htin wGhtunwgty k:
A cross-stone fragment used as building material (photo and tracing by R. Kortoshian, 2009): lost since 2010

8
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g hwyumGuptmjuwd fuwspwp (ow. L qps.’ . Loppngjubh, 2019 p.)

A cross-stone found in the foundations of a destroyed building (photo and tracing by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

ymppuyul qintiqiwlng. qjninh hjnuhu-
wnpldunjwl tiqphG shuwlquiw)( wiyiwu yuwh-
wwlymy k. pymppwlul hpG gbiptiquwlngp (N
40° 31.993; E 045° 16.515", 0. 0. 2161 11): Stinnud
wniuw ninnuhwjwg Julqltigwo giphquwGw-
pwnptipp hiGww lnmd wadyuy G6 L wlwpdw-
Gwqghp: Ywl Gwb wpwpbpbl wpdwluwgpni-
pyniGGtpny tpym wwubjuwy hpdwpwnbn,
npnGg tiqpuuughG pytipd GG 1896-1934:

Uwmnpl Ghipjuywuglnd Glip wnwyby Jun
pywgpnipjuip vh pwlh wmwwywlwgptp b
npwig pwupgiwlnipniGGLpn.

1.

©wupqu. 1314 (1896-1897 pp.): Wyu E hwlighumn
...h npnp” hwgnigywy pwppuwugh Qujh Uy Uphnh-
(h:

2.

©upgy. 1317 (1899-1900 pp.): Wyu E hwlighumn
(tpJwo hwlgmgjuy ...:

Turkic Cemetery. An old Turkic cemetery
(N 40° 31.993"; E 045° 16.515"; 2,161 metres
above sea level) is preserved intact at the north-
western extremity of Aghberk. It mostly has ver-
tically-placed rough tombstones without any epi-
taphs. There are also twenty gravestones with
Arabic epitaphs dating from the period between
1896 and 1934.

Below follow some of the oldest epitaphs of
this cemetery:

] Al Gl 52 5 3 [ gl 43 s [ APIF

Transl: 1314 (1896-1897). Here lies ...’s son, the
late Karbala Zayn Al Abidini.

| Sy giarall gy o [ 4d 0 plio [I1n [ AFVY

Transl.: 1317 (1899-1900). Here lies the late ... who
has been forgiven.



Lunnywd pynippwljwil gintquiwGnghg (nw.’ . Loppngjuth, 2019 p.)
Partial view of the Turkic cemetery (photo by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

3. -wu/gjkﬁ/@aﬂj/}ﬁiﬂ’iﬂﬁﬂ’/ﬁﬂ Iia [ aF1Y

©upqu. 1317 (1899-1900 pp.): Uju E hwlghuwn Transl: 1317 (1899-1900). Here lies Karbala
pwppwiwjh <ntubyGh ngnuenp’ Gipduwoe hwlgnguwy  Husein’s daughter, the late Bushra, who has been for-
Pnippwjh: given.

4. o | i (IS [ 85 sikall s yall [ 4550 11 [ NIA L

euwpqs. pyhG 1318 (1900-1901 pp.): Uju L hwG- Transl.: In 1318 (1900-1901). Here lies the late Kar-
ghuwn GtpJwd hwlgnigyug pwppwjwjh <ntubyGh ... bala Husein’s ... who has been forgiven.

Omppwljui qtintqiwingh hGwqniyG pyulhp (1896-1897) pupp (jnuw. L qps.” . Loppngjwmbh, 2019 p.)
The oldest dated tombstone (1896-1897) of the Turkic cemetery (photo and tracing by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

10



Upwpbipti6 wpdwGugpnipjudp pjnippuiljuiG glipiqwGwpwnptiph GunGbpG pun JpdwimpyniGabph (Ne 2-5) hwenprnw-

Yuwlmpjwl (.’ . Loppnyjwbh, 2019 p.)
The Turkic tombstones with Arabic epitaphs presented in the order of their decipherments (nos. 2-5): photos by R.

Kortoshian, 2019)

5.

©wpqy. 1319 (1901-1902 pp.): Uyu £ hwlghuwn
Pup...h npnh’ Gipdwd hwlgnigjw) Owntidh:

e [ ool Sl [ 3, saialll gy sall [ 43,0 Iia [ 111

Transl.: 1319 (1901-1902). Here lies Bak...’s son,
the late Tadef, who has been forgiven.
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Juimpjwl (mu.’ £, Loppnojwubh, 2019 p.)
The Turkic tombstones with Arabic epitaphs presented in the order of their decipherments (nos. 6-8): photos by R.
Kortoshian, 2019

Ewpgu. 1320 (1902-1903 pp.): Uju L hwlghuwn Transl.: 1320 (1902-1903). Here lies Val...’s son, the
“wy...h npph hwgmgywy Untupwduwgh: late Mustafa.

7. e [ s gL (5 saiall Lo ga[re 48,0 lia [ NFYF

Ewpqi. 1326 (1908 p.): Uju t hwghun Uiphh Transl.: 1326 (1908). Here lies Ali’s daughter, the
nouunp’ Gipywo hwlgnigyuy Owyqhpwih: late Takziban, who has been forgiven.

8. i | o e | ssiiall| pga o 138 [ IFA] Gussin i aun dabi [ ole tans alll

Ewpqs. Upwh, Unthwddty, Uih, Swpdw, {w- Transl: Allah, Muhammed, Ali, Fatma, Hasan,
uw, {ynwthG: 1328 (1910 p.): Uju & hwlghun  Hyusein. 1328 (1910). Here lies Hyusein’s son, the
&JnutihGh npnh’ GEpdwo hwiqnigywy Uihhe late Ali, who has been forgiven.

1930-wwl pywlwGGtph Gpypnpn YuuhG In the second half of the 1930s, an Azerbai-

wnppiowGwlwi gbptiqiwing k qnjugh| qyni-  janian cemetery was formed about 100 metres
nhg Unnn 100 ¥ hwpwy-wpldnunp: G-bptiqiw-  south-west of the village. The tombstones are
Guwpwpbpp hhiGwlywlnd niGEG pmuwwnwn  mostly engraved with Azerbaijanian epitaphs in
wnpptiowGtptb (hGuqnyyGGatpp’ Gl wpwpt-  Russian script, the oldest ones also having Ara-
ntb) wpdwlwqpnipyniGGtp: QbptiquuGupw-  bic inscriptions. These gravestones can be traced
ptinp tigpuyhG pytinG 66" 1939-1987: back to the period between 1939 and 1987.

12



JwGh, 2019 B.)
The village site from the north-east; house foundations; late medieval pottery and the terraces (photos by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

G ymnuuntinh. qunGynud £ Unplipphg 1,5 Ju
wplbip (N 40°3133.79% E 045°1536.99") L
thnjwo £ gptiph gwdwpwo vh wnpyniph hw-
plwGnipjudp:

UdtiGw) i hwjwlwlwlnipjuwdp, dhGsu
dE-dC nn. hwjwplwly gyninp htnmwquynud
tpplt sh pGuytgyby:

G- jninuuntinhh mwpwopnid Wwhwywlynid
G0 Unn Wby nwuljuly quiwqub 2hGnpmnG-
Gtph httmpbp (mGwwntntp L wmGtph hhdptip):

Nn9 vwlbtptuhG wnlw L npuh9Gunwp-
jwl hutgtntG, hul qyninuwbnhhg wplbp
(pdwnynmd G0 hnnuagnpo plwlhsGtph Junni-
guo uwlnnuywbnltp:

Village Site. This village site is located 1.5
km east of Aghberk (N 40°3133.79"; E
045°1536.99"), in the vicinity of a spring that
has almost dried up.

Populated by Armenians until the 17th to
18th centuries, the village most probably did not
see any other inhabitants afterwards.

The village site preserves the remnants of
about 10 buildings (house sites and foundations).
It also abounds in pieces of pottery of the late
Middle Ages. To the east, the terraces once built
by the local farmers can still be discerned.
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«SEAUKULUUD vl 2LULE,Lh KUY ULy OLUGPML UALRGLLORT
COLLECTION OF DISPLACED CROSS-STONES PROJECT IN AGHBERK

lll IA?

- -!II

Yuomgywd fuwspwpbnh wmpwyp (ow.’ £, LoppngjwiGh, 2019 p.)

The park of cross-stones (photo by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

L2juy opwghpl wnwohl wlquy hpwlw-
Gwgynd k Unptipp qnunnui (dhGsk 1988 p.°
wnppiowGwpluly), nph ppewlGwyGtpnud hhu-
Gpyby b fuwspwptiph wnipul hGwpuygnpoe-
pyniG muny wydijwb hwy pGuyhyGtphG hw-
Jupbiym wjl fuwgpwpbph ptynplbpp, npnp
hwjmGuptpynud GG qyninh wmwppbp 2h6ni-
pjniGGtph npdtipnud L hhdiptipnud: <nwpdwd-
Gtph dwgnpnltph vh Juwjypmd hwyjwptijne
hhi(wlwl Guuwunuyl b wywhnyt npulg
wlhuwpwn U tpupuwdwiltn gnynipymbn:

dwjywmGh L, np wmbnuplwlltpp YtpehG
wmwphGtphG hwjymGupbpt] G6 npybu 2hGw-
Gyjnip qnpowoywo 5 hnpwpdwl (fuwspwnp b
fuwspwph ptynp): Fpwlghg 4-G wybiih ni
ntinuihnfuyty GG wwpptp Jujptp (Gop gb-
ptiqiwlng, qmnp YtGupnG, wGtphg vkyh
puwly, ukYG £ 2010 p.-hg htimn wihtwnwgh k),
huy 1-p quGynud & wmGtphg vtYh npdhG (2013
p- ujunyt £ L wjdd mbuwGhih sk): Uyuyghuny
wnipuymud ntinlu qentnyt k3 nwgpwph pb-
Unp: <tnwquw wwphGphG npubp pGuluw-
(wpwp Jupnn GG wybpwGwy:
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Within this project, first implemented in the
village of Aghberk (populated by Azerbaijanians
until 1988), a park of cross-stones has been
founded to be later enriched with new cross-
stone fragments that will possibly be found in
the walls and foundations of various local build-
ings. The aim of collecting these fragments in
one place is to secure their intact preservation.

In recent years, the inhabitants of Aghberk
have found 5 monuments (a cross-stone and the
fragments of four others) that were once used as
building material. Later the cross-stone was set
into the wall of a local house and has been hid-
den behind a layer of plaster since 2013. As for
the fragments, one of them has disappeared since
2010, while the other three were taken to the new
graveyard of Aghberk, to the village centre, and
to a local yard. Now these fragments are in the
newly-founded park of Aghberk, where, indeed,
the number of such monuments can increase in
the future.

A memorial plate has been placed in the park
with the following text: “The historical Armenian
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Lwunwd fuwspwpbinh wnipuljhg (o’ . Loppngjwbh, 2019 p.)
Partial view of the park of cross-stones (photo by R. Kortoshian, 2019)

Mnipwynid mtnunpyt) £ hnpuwumwmwly
htimlywy gpmpjwip. «Unpbpp qjninh hwjjuw-
Jqul yuwwuniwljwl qtptquuingl wytpyt) tp
tlynp wnppbowGghGhph Ynnihg, huy fuws-
pwptinp, nputiu 2hGwlmnip, gnpow oyt Gpulg
wmtph L gnitiph npitipnud: 1988 p. htin gyni-
nnui YytpwplGuwyywo hwytph ewlptipny fuws-
punptipp 2019 p. hwywpytghG wju wnipw-
ynud” h hwpquGu GuiuGyug»:

‘Llwwnh mGaGuwny Gwl wjyl, np wmwpptip
YJuyptipmd pGhwo fuwgpwptiph Ypw uwmwp-
Y £ intwjuwnmpinil (JGuwubing npwbp), k-
nunpyty £ Gwl dindwyuy (hnwny GGp, np wjl
qtnd Juuwhh wyn wnqbn unynpmpniGhg, L wnt-
nwyp Yytpuwoyh jupumbuwy dh uppuwnmbnhh):

{wiwdw)l opwqph’ Unptpph nupngnid
nwuwfjununipjniGltnh dwdwlwl wbntyni-
pynGGtp GG thnfuwlgyty gnunud ywhww G-
Jwo hwjjuyuwl L swhitnuiwb hnuwpdwl-
Gtph tpwpbpyug plngotiny npwuGg wwh-
wwlidwl JuplnpnipyniGn:

Opwqgnh wjwpunhG hpumwpuyyt) L Gul
wju qppnyyyp b pwdwlyty qyninuplGwlyGtphG:

cemetery of Aghberk Village was destroyed by the
Azerbaijanian newcomers, who used its cross-
stones as building material in the walls of their
houses and cattle-sheds. The Armenians who
resettled in this village after 1988 gathered the
cross-stones in this garden in 2019 in token of
respect for their ancestors.”

Common people have the habit of lighting can-
dles on cross-stones, which is a great damage to
these monuments. For this reason, we have placed
a candle stand in the park, hoping that it will help
get rid of this bad habit. We also hope that in the
course of time, the park will turn into a sacred site.

Within the project, a number of lectures were
held in the school of Aghberk, during which the
audience received some information about the
Armenian and Islamic monuments preserved in
the village. The importance of the preservation
of these monuments was emphasized.

Also, within the project, this booklet has
been published and distributed among the people
of Aghberk.

15



Hmjuqbtp opuqph newGumlGapmy juwwmjuds wympuyh 2hGwpuwpulul wlownuipitnhg L nupngmd Geplujug-
Jwd whuwnuuwhinunipyniGhg

Construction activities in the park; a lecture in the village school that was accompanied with videos
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Onwgnph hpwjwliwgdw il mowlgtint hwdwnp
2GnphwuwnipymG tlp hwjmbny

Cnnulwph hwiwjGpuwytin Unijhyn Cnyywljwubha,
Unptipp qyninh nupngh wmGoptiG WGwhhwn Vwibsjubha,
wwuinipjwl nunighy Manpnu UypunmdjwGhG,
wtunty {nyhwGitu {<nyhwbGhujwmGhE,

nupphG WanpuGhy UwphpbljuGhG:

We would like to offer our special thanks to:

Suliko Shushanian, the governor of Shoghakat community;
Anahit Ghalechian, the headmistress of the school of Aghberk;
Petros Mkrtumian, the history teacher of the local school;
Andranik Saribekian, the blacksmith;

Hovhannes Hovhannissian, the construction foreman,

for their contribution to this project.



«SEnwhwlywé fjuwspwpbpp hwywp»
Gpwghp

Luwwwnwlh £ winwhwidwé fuwspwptiph hwiwn Gwfuwwnbuwd wnipwlbtip-hhobbp
Jujwunwbh b Upguup Jwipwwbnnipintbbtiph Gwulhl wnppbowlwplwly w)b
gJntnkipnd, npnkin ybpehGobipu ngbswgpt| G0 hwjlwlwh GheGunwpjwi
qtipiqiwnglbpp, huly hntpwpdwbbbpp npwbu 2hGwhnig, gnpdwdt| tnwpptp
YwentjgGEph npdtpntd L hhdpGpnid:

Uju wnipwllph untbinéniiny hGupwinpnipymb & wpdned qynuintiph wyddajwa

hw) pGwlhsGEphh hwynbwpbpdwd nbnuwhwb hntzwpdwGGipp WwhwwGiwb
Owwwwyny hwywpbint oh ywjpnid:

Unwohl wiqwd Unptipentd hpwlwlwgywé wju dpwahpp, hntuny GGp, hGnwguwyntd
Ywpnn GOp wpnilwyby Gneyd Yupguiyhdwly nlbtgnn wy) gyninbpnid:

~ Collection of Displaced Cross-Stones
Project

The aim of this project is to found parks of displaced cross-stones in those villages
of the Republics of Armenia and Artsakh where the former Azerbaijanian inhabitants
have destroyed the medieval Armenian cemeteries, using the tombstones and
cross-stones as building material.

Thanks to the foundation of such parks, the present-day Armenian inhabitants of
these villages will be able to gather all the displaced monuments in one place,
which will facilitate their preservation. :

We hope that this project, implemented for the first time in Aghberk Village, will also
be carried out in other similar villages.
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